

PATRICK D. CROCKER patrick@crockerlawfirm.com

August 28, 2015

David J. Collins, Executive Secretary Maryland Public Service Commission 6 St. Paul Street Baltimore, MD 21202

## RE: PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC Tariff Revision PSC MD Tariff No. 1 (Local Exchange)

Dear Mr. Collins:

Enclosed for filing with the Commission, please find an original and seventeen (17) copies of the above captioned company's revised *MD Tariff No. 1*. We have enclosed the appropriate filing fee of \$100.00 made payable to the "Maryland Public Service Commission". Attached as Exhibit A please find the current tariff pages, proposed tariff revisions in legislative format and clean tariff pages, including tariff pages as follows:

1 <sup>st</sup> Revised Page 1	Removes text related to unregulated services
1 <sup>st</sup> Revised Page 3	Updates Check Sheet
1 <sup>st</sup> Revised Pages 4-5	Updates Table of Contents
1 <sup>st</sup> Revised Pages 6,8	Removes text related to unregulated services
1 <sup>st</sup> Revised Pages 27-35	Removes text related to de-tariffed services

This Tariff has been amended in accordance with the June 9, 2015 Maryland Public Service Commission *Notice of Deregulation of Interexchange Telecommunications Services* and the Commission's Case No. 9384, dated July 1, 2015. The enclosed local tariff revision removes all discretionary and competitive services from the tariff. The Company will maintain a telecommunications price guide on the Company's website at <u>http://pegbandwidth.com/regulatory-postings</u>.

In addition, enclosed is a duplicate of this letter. Please date-stamp the duplicate and return same in the enclosed postage-paid envelope attached thereto.

Should you have any questions concerning this filing, please contact the undersigned at (269) 381-8893 or by email at <u>patrick@crockerlawfirm.com</u>.

Very truly yours,

**CROCKER & CROCKER** 

/s/ Patrick D. Crocker

Patrick D. Crocker PDC/pas

The Kalamazoo Building 10

107 West Michigan Avenue, Fourth Floor

Kalamazoo, Michigan 49007

# EXHIBIT A

**Tariff Pages** 

# EXHIBIT A-1

# **Current Tariff Pages**

Original Page 1

Tariff Schedule Applicable to

# Resold and Facilities-Based Competitive Local Exchange And Interexchange

Telecommunications Services Furnished by

# PEG BANDWIDTH MD, LLC

Between Points Within the State of Maryland

Issued: November 5, 2012

Effective date: March 20, 2013

Original Page 3

# CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through **(insert number)** inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

1 Original 30 Origina	al
2 Original 31 Origina	
3 Original 32 Origina	
4 Original 33 Origina	
5 Original 34 Origina	
6 Original 35 Origina	al
7 Original	
8 Original	
9 Original	
10 Original	
11 Original	
12 Original	
13 Original	
14 Original	
15 Original	
16 Original	
17 Original	
18 Original	
19 Original	
20 Original	
21 Original	
22 Original	
23 Original	
24 Original	
25 Original	
26 Original	
27 Original	
28 Original	
29 Original	

Issued: November 5, 2012

## Table of Contents

1	General	6
	1.1 Explanation of Symbols	6
	1.2 Application of the Tariff	6
	1.3 Definitions	7
2	Rules and Regulations	
	2.1 Undertaking of the Company	
	2.2 Obligations of the Customer	
	2.3 Liability of the Company	
	2.4 Application for Service	
	2.5 Payment for Service	
	2.6 Customer Deposits	
	2.7 Late Payment Charges	
	2.8 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes	
	2.9 Allowance for Interruptions in Service	
	<ul><li>2.10 Taxes and Fees</li><li>2.11 Returned Check Charge</li></ul>	
	2.12 Reserved For Future Use	
	2.13 Special Customer Arrangements	
	2.14 Termination of Service:	
	2.15 Unlawful Use of Service	
	2.16 Interference With or Impairment of Service	
	2.17 Telephone Solicitation by Use of Recorded Messages	
	2.18 Incomplete Calls	
	2.19 Overcharge/Undercharge	
3	Description Of Services	27
	3.1 Trial Services	
	3.2 Promotional Offerings	
	3.3 Individual Case Basis Offerings	
	3.4 Customized Pricing Arrangements Offerings	27
	3.5 General	
	3.6 Service Configurations	
	3.7 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications	28
	3.8 Rate Categories	
	3.9 Application of Rate Elements	30

## Original Page 5

4	Rates and Charges	
	4.1 Calculation of Rates	
	4.2 Dial-Around Compensation Surcharge for Payphones	
	4.3 Local Service Provider Freeze	
	4.4 Special Construction	
	4.5 Rates	

Issued: November 5, 2012

Effective date: March 20, 2013

## 1 GENERAL

- 1.1 Explanation of Symbols
  - (C) To signify a changed regulation
  - (D) To signify a discontinued rate or regulation
  - (I) To signify an increase in a rate
  - (M) To signify text or rates relocated without change
  - (N) To signify a new rate or regulation or other text
  - (R) To signify a reduction in a rate
  - (S) To signify reissued regulations
  - (T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate
  - (Z) To signify a correction
- 1.2 Application of the Tariff
  - 1.2.1 This tariff governs the Carrier's services that originate and terminate in Maryland. Specific services and rates are described elsewhere in this tariff.
  - 1.2.2 The Company's services are available to business customers.
  - 1.2.3 The Company's service territory is statewide for interexchange services. Local service will be provided in the local exchanges and local calling areas consistent with Verizon Maryland's Local Exchange Services Tariff.

Issued: November 5, 2012

## 2 RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to resold and facilities-based competitive local exchange and interexchange services provided by PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC, hereinafter referred to as the Company, in the State of Maryland. Services are directed at the business market.

- 2.2 Obligations of the Customer
  - 2.2.1 The customer shall be responsible for:
    - 2.2.1.1 The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff;
    - 2.2.1.2 Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the customer; or the noncompliance by the customer, with these regulations, or by fire or theft or other casualty on the customer's premises unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company.
    - 2.2.1.3 Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed space and power to operate the Company's facilities and equipment installed on the customer's premises.

## 3 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

- 3.1 Trial Services
  - 3.1.1 The Company may offer new services, not otherwise tariffed, from time to time on a trial basis subject to Commission approval. Such trials are limited to a maximum of six months at which time the trial offering must be either withdrawn or made available on permanent basis.
- 3.2 Promotional Offerings
  - 3.2.1 The Company may offer existing services on a promotional basis, subject to Commission approval, that provides special rates, terms, or conditions of service. Promotional offerings are limited to a maximum of six months at which time the promotional offering must be either withdrawn or made available on a permanent basis. All promotions, regardless of whether services are given away for free, are subject to Commission approval. The Company may file a promotional offering on one days notice to the Commission.
- 3.3 Individual Case Basis ("ICB") Offerings
  - 3.3.1 The tariff may not specify the price of a service in the tariff as ICB. The Company may or may not have an equivalent service in its tariff on file with the Commission, and the quoted ICB rates may be different than the tariffed rates. An ICB must be provided under contract to a customer and the contract filed (can be under seal) with the Commission. All customers have non-discriminatory access to requesting the service under an ICB rate.
- 3.4 Customized Pricing Arrangements ("CPAs") Offerings
  - 3.4.1 The Company may offer CPAs to eligible customers. Each CPA is customized to meet the specific needs of a customer. Rates quoted are different from the tariffed rates. CPA rates must be provided under contract to a customer and the contract filed (can be under seal) with the Commission.

Issued: November 5, 2012

## 3.5 <u>General</u>

The various types of service offered by the Company are described below. The Company's services are billed at predetermined monthly rates, unless there is a contract for a longer billing period. Recurring charges are billed in advance of the month in which the service is provided. Any optional features and extraordinary installation costs other than recurring and nonrecurring charges may apply as described herein. Customers requesting these services may subscribe to services on a month-to-month basis, or on an individual case basis as described in Section 3.6.

### 3.6 <u>Service Configurations</u>

There are two types of service configuration over which Company's services are provided: point-to-point and multipoint service.

### 3.6.1 <u>Point-to-Point Service</u>

Point-to-Point Service connects two premises designated by the Customer, either on a directly connected basis or through a hub where multiplexing functions are performed.

## 3.6.2 <u>Multipoint Service</u>

Multipoint Services connect three or more premises designated by the Customer through a Company hub. While there is no limitation on the number of locations that may be connected through multipoint service, the quality of service may be degraded when more than three points are connected. Multipoint services may be provided where it is technically possible to provide those services. However, if the Company determines that the requested multipoint service is not feasible, the Customer will be notified and provided an opportunity to change the order within forty-five (45) days.

### 3.7 <u>Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications</u>

The Company plans to offer the following services:

3.7.1 <u>50Mbps, 100Mbps through 1Gbps (in 100Mb increments) and 10Gbps Ethernet Service</u>

The Company provides point-to-point Ethernet services provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by Company.

Issued: November 5, 2012

## 3.7.2 <u>DS-1 through OC-192 Private Line service</u>

The Company provides Private Line service designed to transport high bandwidth voice, data, and video applications that demand the full-time availability of a dedicated service. This service provides point-to-point or point to multi-point dedicated connections between two of your locations or local access to an inter-exchange carrier (IXC) point of presence (POP).

## 3.7.3 <u>1 Gbps, 2.5 Gbps and 10 Gbps Wavelengths</u>

The Company provides point-to-point Wavelength services provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by Company.

## 3.8 <u>Rate Categories</u>

There are six rate categories that may apply to the Company's Services.

## 3.8.1 Channel Terminations

The Channel Termination Rate category provides for the communications path between two premises designated by a Customer. Included as part of the Channel Termination is a standard channel interface arrangement that defines the technical characteristics associated with the type of facilities to which the Company's service is to be connected, and the type of signaling capability (if any). One Channel Termination charge applies per Customer designated premises at which the service is terminated.

### 3.8.2 Channel Mileage

The Channel Mileage Rate category provides for the transmission facilities between two or more premises designated by a Customer.

### 3.8.3 Extraordinary Charges

From time to time, Customers may request special services not addressed specifically by rate elements in this Tariff, or services to locations that may cause Company to incur extraordinary expenses not contemplated in the provision of standard service offerings. These costs include, but are not limited to:

Additional construction costs Building space rental or rights-of-way costs Additional equipment Special facilities routing

In these cases, the Customer will be billed additional charges on an ICB.

#### 3.8.4 Volume Discounts

Where the Customer subscribes to substantial volumes of the Company's services, discounts for specified dollar volumes of traffic to a specific location or aggregate dollar volumes may apply on an individual customer basis.

#### 3.8.5 Term Discounts

Customers will be eligible for discounts for executing agreements for services for one to ten years.

#### 3.9 Application of Rate Elements

The rate categories described in Section 4.5 of this Tariff will be applied as follows, when applicable:

### 3.9.1 <u>Point-to-Point Services</u>

Channel Terminations Channel Mileage Optional Features and Functions Extraordinary Charges Volume Discounts Term Discounts

Issued: November 5, 2012

Effective date: March 20, 2013

Original Page 31

## 3.9.1.1 <u>Multipoint Services</u>

Channel Terminations Channel Mileage Optional Features and Functions Extraordinary Charges Volume Discounts Term Discounts

Issued: November 5, 2012

Effective date: March 20, 2013

## 4 RATES AND CHARGES

- 4.1 Calculation of Rates
  - 4.1.1 Rates for service are based on airline mileage between rate centers of the calling and called stations. The location of rate centers is based on information provided by Verizon Maryland, Inc. Mileage is calculated using the Vertical and Horizontal (V&H) coordinate system from the National Exchange Carriers Association Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.
  - 4.1.2 Timing of calls begins when the call is answered at the called station. Calls originating in one time period and terminating in another time period will be billed according to the rates in effect during each portion of the call.

Issued: November 5, 2012

Effective date: March 20, 2013

## 4.2 <u>General Regulations</u>

- 4.2.1 Except as specifically indicated, the rates set forth in this section are for transport services where the originating and terminating points are on Company's existing network. In all other situations, special construction charges may apply in order to connect locations to Company's network.
- 4.2.2 Services may be provided using one, or a combination of rate elements as outlined in this Tariff.

## 4.3 Charges for Changes to Pending Orders, Service Rearrangements and Expedite Charges

From time to time, Customers may request changes to pending orders, rearrangements to existing service, and order completion to standard intervals. In these cases, the Customer will be required to reimburse the Company for the increased expenses incurred on an ICB.

## 4.4 <u>Special Construction</u>

## 4.4.1 Bases for Rates and Charges

Rates and charges for special construction will be based on the costs incurred by the Company and may include (1) nonrecurring type charges; (2) recurring type charges; (3) termination liabilities; or (4) combinations thereof.

- 4.4.2 The costs referred to in Section 4.4.1 may include one or more of the following items to the extent that they are applicable:
  - A. Installed cost of the facilities, including estimated costs for the rearrangement of existing facilities. Cost installed includes the cost of:
    - 1. equipment and materials provided or used,
    - 2. engineering, labor and supervision,
    - 3. transportation, and
    - 4. rights-of-way;
  - B. cost of maintenance;

Issued: November 5, 2012

- C. depreciation on the estimated installed cost of any facilities provided, based on the anticipated useful service life of the facilities with an appropriate allowance for the estimated net salvage;
- D. administration, taxes, and uncollectible revenue on the basis of reasonable average costs for these items;
- E. license preparation, processing, and related fees;
- F. tariff preparation, processing, and related fees;
- G. any other identifiable costs related to the facilities provided; or
- H. an amount for return and contingencies.

## 4.5 <u>Rates</u>

4.5.1 Local Private Line/Special Access Service

<b>Speed</b>	<u>Pt-Pt</u>	<u>Hub</u>	<u>End Link</u>	<u>Installs</u>
DS-0	\$330.00		\$165.00	\$1,125.00
DS-1	\$580.00	\$440.00	\$305.00	\$1,250.00
DS-3	\$3,990.00	\$2,835.00	\$2,065.00	\$1,250.00
OC-3	\$7,400.00	\$5,125.00	\$3,700.00	\$5,000.00
OC-12	\$19,800.00	\$13,860.00	\$9,900.00	\$5,000.00
OC-48	\$44,750.00	\$31,445.00	\$22,175.00	\$5,000.00
Fast E 10Meg	\$2,000.00			\$3,500.00
Fast E 100Meg	\$3,000.00			\$5,000.00
Gige 150	\$3,750.00			\$5,000.00
Gige 600	\$6,000.00			\$7,500.00
Gige 1000	\$7,500.00			\$10,000.00

Issued: November 5, 2012

# 4.5.2 Ancillary Charges

# 4.5.2.1 Order Change Charge

<b>Speed</b>	Order Change Charge
DS-0	\$100.00
DS-1	\$200.00
DS-3	\$250.00
OC-3	\$750.00
OC-12	\$750.00
OC-48	\$750.00
Fast E 10Meg	\$750.00
Fast E 100Meg	\$750.00
Gige 150	\$750.00
Gige 600	\$750.00
Gige 1000	\$750.00

4.5.2.2 Order Cancellation Charge

		Post-
<b>Speed</b>	Pre-Engineering	Engineering
DS-0	\$200.00	\$1,2250.00
DS-1	\$400.00	\$1,250.00
DS-3	\$1,000.00	\$1,250.00
OC-3	\$1,000.00	\$5,000.00
OC-12	\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
OC-48	\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
Fast E 10Meg	\$1,500.00	\$3,500.00
Fast E 100Meg	\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
Gige 150	\$2,500.00	\$5,000.00
Gige 600	\$3,750.00	\$7,500.00
Gige 1000	\$5,000.00	\$10,000.00

Issued: November 5, 2012

# EXHIBIT A-2

# **Revisions in Legislative Format**

Tariff Schedule Applicable to

## Resold and Facilities-Based Competitive Local Exchange And Interexchange

Telecommunications Services Furnished by

## PEG BANDWIDTH MD, LLC

Between Points Within the State of Maryland

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

# CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through (insert number) inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

<u>Page</u>	Number of Revision	<u>Page</u>	Number of Revision
1	Original <u>1<sup>st</sup> Revised*</u>	30	Original 1st Revised*
2	Original	31	Original 1st Revised*
3	Original1st Revised*	32	Original 1st Revised*
4	Original 1st Revised*	33	Original 1st Revised*
5	Original 1st Revised*	34	Original 1st Revised*
6	Original 1st Revised*	35	Original 1st Revised*
7	Original		- <u> </u>
8	Original 1st Revised*		
9	Original		
10	Original		
11	Original		
12	Original		
13	Original		
14	Original		
15	Original		
16	Original		
17	Original		
18	Original		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original		
26	Original		
27	Original 1st Revised*		
28	Original 1st Revised*		
29	Original 1st Revised*		

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

# Table of Contents

1	General	6
	1.1 Explanation of Symbols	6
	1.2 Application of the Tariff	6
	1.3 Definitions	7
2	Rules and Regulations	9
	2.1 Undertaking of the Company	9
	2.2 Obligations of the Customer	9
	2.3 Liability of the Company	. 11
	2.4 Application for Service	. 15
	2.5 Payment for Service	. 16
	2.6 Customer Deposits	. 18
	2.7 Late Payment Charges	. 18
	2.8 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes	. 19
	2.9 Allowance for Interruptions in Service	. 20
	2.10 Taxes and Fees	. 20
	2.11 Returned Check Charge	. 20
	2.12 Reserved For Future Use	
	2.13 Special Customer Arrangements	. 21
	2.14 Termination of Service:	
	2.15 Unlawful Use of Service	
	2.16 Interference With or Impairment of Service	
	2.17 Telephone Solicitation by Use of Recorded Messages	. 26
	2.18 Incomplete Calls	
	2.19 Overcharge/Undercharge	. 26
3	Description Of Services	
	3.1 Trial Services	
	3.2 Promotional Offerings	
	3.3 Individual Case Basis Offerings	27
	3.4 Customized Pricing Arrangements Offerings	. 27
	3.5 General	
	3.6 Service Configurations	
	3.7 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications	
	3.8 Rate Categories	
	3.9 Application of Rate Elements	. 30

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

4 Rates and Charges	
4.1	
	ound Compensation Surcharge for Payphones 28
4.3	Local Service Provider Freeze 28
4.5	

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

## 1 GENERAL

- 1.1 Explanation of Symbols
  - (C) To signify a changed regulation
  - (D) To signify a discontinued rate or regulation
  - (I) To signify an increase in a rate
  - (M) To signify text or rates relocated without change
  - (N) To signify a new rate or regulation or other text
  - (R) To signify a reduction in a rate
  - (S) To signify reissued regulations
  - (T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate
  - (Z) To signify a correction
- 1.2 Application of the Tariff
  - 1.2.1 This tariff governs the Carrier's services that originate and terminate in Maryland. Specific services and rates are described elsewhere in this tariff.
  - 1.2.2 The Company's services are available to business customers.
  - 1.2.3 The Company's service territory is statewide for interexchange services. Local service will be provided in the local exchanges and local calling areas consistent with Verizon Maryland's Local Exchange Services Tariff.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

## 2 RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to resold and facilities-based competitive local exchange and interexchange services provided by PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC, hereinafter referred to as the Company, in the State of Maryland. Services are directed at the business market.

- 2.2 Obligations of the Customer
  - 2.2.1 The customer shall be responsible for:
    - 2.2.1.1 The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff;
    - 2.2.1.2 Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the customer; or the noncompliance by the customer, with these regulations, or by fire or theft or other casualty on the customer's premises unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company.
    - 2.2.1.3 Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed space and power to operate the Company's facilities and equipment installed on the customer's premises.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

## 3 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES\_Reserved for Future Use

3.1 Trial Services

3.1.1 The Company may offer new services, not otherwise tariffed, from time to time on a trial basis subject to Commission approval. Such trials are limited to a maximum of six months at which time the trial offering must be either withdrawn or made available on permanent basis.

<u>- 3.2 Promotional Offerings</u>

3.2.1 The Company may offer existing services on a promotional basis, subject to Commission approval, that provides special rates, terms, or conditions of service. Promotional offerings are limited to a maximum of six months at which time the promotional offering must be either withdrawn or made available on a permanent basis. All promotions, regardless of whether services are given away for free, are subject to Commission approval. The Company may file a promotional offering on one days notice to the Commission.

3.3 Individual Case Basis ("ICB") Offerings

3.3.1 The tariff may not specify the price of a service in the tariff as ICB. The Company may or may not have an equivalent service in its tariff on file with the Commission, and the quoted ICB rates may be different than the tariffed rates. An ICB must be provided under contract to a customer and the contract filed (can be under seal) with the Commission. All customers have non-discriminatory access to requesting the service under an ICB rate.

<u>- 3.4 Customized Pricing Arrangements ("CPAs") Offerings</u>

3.4.1 The Company may offer CPAs to eligible customers. Each CPA is customized to meet the specific needs of a customer. Rates quoted are different from the tariffed rates. CPA rates must be provided under contract to a customer and the contract filed (can be under seal) with the Commission.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

### 3.5 <u>General</u>

The various types of service offered by the Company are described below. The Company's services are billed at predetermined monthly rates, unless there is a contract for a longer billing period. Recurring charges are billed in advance of the month in which the service is provided. Any optional features and extraordinary installation costs other than recurring and nonrecurring charges may apply as described herein. Customers requesting these services may subscribe to services on a month to month basis, or on an individual case basis as described in Section 3.6.

### 3.6 <u>Service Configurations</u>

There are two types of service configuration over which Company's services are provided: pointto-point and multipoint service.

3.6.1 Point-to-Point Service

Point to Point Service connects two premises designated by the Customer, either on a directly connected basis or through a hub where multiplexing functions are performed.

3.6.2 <u>Multipoint Service</u>

Multipoint Services connect three or more premises designated by the Customer through a Company hub. While there is no limitation on the number of locations that may be connected through multipoint service, the quality of service may be degraded when more than three points are connected. Multipoint services may be provided where it is technically possible to provide those services. However, if the Company determines that the requested multipoint service is not feasible, the Customer will be notified and provided an opportunity to change the order within forty-five (45) days.

### 3.7 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications

The Company plans to offer the following services:

3.7.1 50Mbps, 100Mbps through 1Gbps (in 100Mb increments) and 10Gbps Ethernet Service

The Company provides point to point Ethernet services provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by Company.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

#### 3.7.2 <u>DS-1 through OC-192 Private Line service</u>

- The Company provides Private Line service designed to transport high bandwidth voice, data, and video applications that demand the full-time availability of a dedicated service. This service provides point to point or point to multi-point dedicated connections between two of your locations or local access to an inter-exchange carrier (IXC) point of presence (POP).
- 3.7.3 <u>1 Gbps, 2.5 Gbps and 10 Gbps Wavelengths</u>
- The Company provides point to point Wavelength services provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by Company.
- 3.8 Rate Categories

There are six rate categories that may apply to the Company's Services.

- 3.8.1 Channel Terminations
- The Channel Termination Rate category provides for the communications path between two premises designated by a Customer. Included as part of the Channel Termination is a standard channel interface arrangement that defines the technical characteristics associated with the type of facilities to which the Company's service is to be connected, and the type of signaling capability (if any). One Channel Termination charge applies per Customer designated premises at which the service is terminated.
- 3.8.2 Channel Mileage
- The Channel Mileage Rate category provides for the transmission facilities between two or more premises designated by a Customer.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

#### 3.8.3 Extraordinary Charges

From time to time, Customers may request special services not addressed specifically by rate elements in this Tariff, or services to locations that may cause Company to incur extraordinary expenses not contemplated in the provision of standard service offerings. These costs include, but are not limited to:

Additional construction costs Building space rental or rights of way costs Additional equipment Special facilities routing

In these cases, the Customer will be billed additional charges on an ICB.

#### 3.8.4 Volume Discounts

Where the Customer subscribes to substantial volumes of the Company's services, discounts for specified dollar volumes of traffic to a specific location or aggregate dollar volumes may apply on an individual customer basis.

#### 3.8.5 Term Discounts

Customers will be eligible for discounts for executing agreements for services for one to ten years.

#### 3.9 Application of Rate Elements

The rate categories described in Section 4.5 of this Tariff will be applied as follows, when applicable:

3.9.1 Point-to-Point Services

Channel Terminations Channel Mileage Optional Features and Functions Extraordinary Charges Volume Discounts Term Discounts

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

## 3.9.1.1 <u>Multipoint Services</u>

Channel Terminations Channel Mileage Optional Features and Functions Extraordinary Charges Volume Discounts Term Discounts

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

## 4 RATES AND CHARGES Reserved for Future Use

- 4.1 Calculation of Rates
  - 4.1.1 Rates for service are based on airline mileage between rate centers of the calling and called stations. The location of rate centers is based on information provided by Verizon Maryland, Inc. Mileage is calculated using the Vertical and Horizontal (V&H) coordinate system from the National Exchange Carriers Association Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.
  - 4.1.2 Timing of calls begins when the call is answered at the called station. Calls originating in one time period and terminating in another time period will be billed according to the rates in effect during each portion of the call.

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

### 4.2 <u>General Regulations</u>

4.2.1 Except as specifically indicated, the rates set forth in this section are for transport services where the originating and terminating points are on Company's existing network. In all other situations, special construction charges may apply in order to connect locations to Company's network.

4.2.2 Services may be provided using one, or a combination of rate elements as outlined in this Tariff.

#### 4.3 <u>Charges for Changes to Pending Orders, Service Rearrangements and Expedite Charges</u>

From time to time, Customers may request changes to pending orders, rearrangements to existing service, and order completion to standard intervals. In these cases, the Customer will be required to reimburse the Company for the increased expenses incurred on an ICB.

- 4.4 Special Construction
- 4.4.1 Bases for Rates and Charges

Rates and charges for special construction will be based on the costs incurred by the Company and may include (1) nonrecurring type charges; (2) recurring type charges; (3) termination liabilities; or (4) combinations thereof.

4.4.2 The costs referred to in Section 4.4.1 may include one or more of the following items to the extent that they are applicable:

A. Installed cost of the facilities, including estimated costs for the rearrangement of existing facilities. Cost installed includes the cost of:

- 1. equipment and materials provided or used,
- 2. engineering, labor and supervision,
- 3. transportation, and
- 4. rights-of-way;
- B. cost of maintenance;

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

- C. depreciation on the estimated installed cost of any facilities provided, based on the anticipated useful service life of the facilities with an appropriate allowance for the estimated net salvage;
- D. administration, taxes, and uncollectible revenue on the basis of reasonable average costs for these items;
- E. license preparation, processing, and related fees;
- F. tariff preparation, processing, and related fees;
- G. any other identifiable costs related to the facilities provided; or
- H. an amount for return and contingencies.
- 4.5 <u>Rates</u>

4.5.1 Local Private Line/Special Access Service

<b>Speed</b>	<u>Pt-Pt</u>	<u>Hub</u>	End Link	<u>Installs</u>
<del>DS-0</del>	<del>\$330.00</del>		<del>\$165.00</del>	<del>\$1,125.00</del>
<del>DS-1</del>	<del>\$580.00</del>	<del>\$440.00</del>	<del>\$305.00</del>	<del>\$1,250.00</del>
<del>DS-3</del>	<del>\$3,990.00</del>	<del>\$2,835.00</del>	<del>\$2,065.00</del>	<del>\$1,250.00</del>
<del>OC-3</del>	<del>\$7,400.00</del>	<del>\$5,125.00</del>	<del>\$3,700.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
<del>OC-12</del>	<del>\$19,800.00</del>	<del>\$13,860.00</del>	<del>\$9,900.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
<del>OC-48</del>	<del>\$44,750.00</del>	<del>\$31,445.00</del>	<del>\$22,175.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Fast E 10Meg	<del>\$2,000.00</del>			<del>\$3,500.00</del>
Fast E 100Meg	<del>\$3,000.00</del>			<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Gige 150	<del>\$3,750.00</del>			<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Gige 600	<del>\$6,000.00</del>			<del>\$7,500.00</del>
Gige 1000	<del>\$7,500.00</del>			<del>\$10,000.00</del>

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

#### 4.5.2 <u>Ancillary Charges</u>

#### 4.5.2.1 Order Change Charge

<u>Speed</u>	Order Change Charge
<del>DS-0</del>	<del>\$100.00</del>
<del>DS-1</del>	<del>\$200.00</del>
<del>DS-3</del>	<del>\$250.00</del>
<del>OC-3</del>	<del>\$750.00</del>
<del>OC-12</del>	<del>\$750.00</del>
<del>OC-48</del>	<del>\$750.00</del>
Fast E 10Meg	<del>\$750.00</del>
Fast E 100Meg	<del>\$750.00</del>
Gige 150	<del>\$750.00</del>
Gige 600	<del>\$750.00</del>
Gige 1000	<del>\$750.00</del>

#### 4.5.2.2 Order Cancellation Charge

		Post-
<u>Speed</u>	Pre-Engineering	Engineering
<del>DS-0</del>	<del>\$200.00</del>	<del>\$1,2250.00</del>
<del>DS-1</del>	<del>\$400.00</del>	<del>\$1,250.00</del>
<del>DS-3</del>	<del>\$1,000.00</del>	<del>\$1,250.00</del>
<del>OC-3</del>	<del>\$1,000.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
<del>OC-12</del>	<del>\$2,500.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
<del>OC-48</del>	<del>\$2,500.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Fast E 10Meg	<del>\$1,500.00</del>	<del>\$3,500.00</del>
Fast E 100Meg	<del>\$2,500.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Gige 150	<del>\$2,500.00</del>	<del>\$5,000.00</del>
Gige 600	<del>\$3,750.00</del>	<del>\$7,500.00</del>
Gige 1000	<del>\$5,000.00</del>	<del>\$10,000.00</del>

Issued: November 5, 2012 September 9, 2015

Effective date: March 20, 2013 October 9, 2015

# EXHIBIT A-3

# **Clean Tariff Pages**

Tariff Schedule Applicable to

## **Resold and Facilities-Based Competitive Local Exchange**

(D)

Telecommunications Services Furnished by

## PEG BANDWIDTH MD, LLC

Between Points Within the State of Maryland

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 Effective date: October 9, 2015

## CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through 35 inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

<u>Page</u>	Number of Revision	<u>Page</u>	Number of Revision
1	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*	30	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
2	Original	31	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
3	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*	32	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
4	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*	33	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
5	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*	34	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
6	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*	35	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*
7	Original		
8	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*		
9	Original		
10	Original		
11	Original		
12	Original		
13	Original		
14	Original		
15	Original		
16	Original		
17	Original		
18	Original		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original		
26	Original		
27	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*		
28	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*		
29	1 <sup>st</sup> Revised*		

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

### Table of Contents

1	General	6
	1.1 Explanation of Symbols	6
	1.2 Application of the Tariff	6
	1.3 Definitions	
2	Rules and Regulations	9
	2.1 Undertaking of the Company	9
	2.2 Obligations of the Customer	
	2.3 Liability of the Company	. 11
	2.4 Application for Service	. 15
	2.5 Payment for Service	
	2.6 Customer Deposits	
	2.7 Late Payment Charges	
	2.8 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes	
	2.9 Allowance for Interruptions in Service	
	2.10 Taxes and Fees	
	2.11 Returned Check Charge	. 20
	2.12 Reserved For Future Use	
	2.13 Special Customer Arrangements	. 21
	2.14 Termination of Service	
	2.15 Unlawful Use of Service	
	2.16 Interference With or Impairment of Service	. 25
	2.17 Telephone Solicitation by Use of Recorded Messages	
	2.18 Incomplete Calls	
	2.19 Overcharge/Undercharge	

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 Effective date: October 9, 2015

(D)

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

#### 1 GENERAL

- 1.1 Explanation of Symbols
  - (C) To signify a changed regulation
  - (D) To signify a discontinued rate or regulation
  - (I) To signify an increase in a rate
  - (M) To signify text or rates relocated without change
  - (N) To signify a new rate or regulation or other text
  - (R) To signify a reduction in a rate
  - (S) To signify reissued regulations
  - (T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate
  - (Z) To signify a correction
- 1.2 Application of the Tariff
  - 1.2.1 This tariff governs the Carrier's services that originate and terminate in Maryland. Specific services and rates are described elsewhere in this tariff.
  - 1.2.2 The Company's services are available to business customers.
  - 1.2.3 Local service will be provided in the local exchanges and local calling (T) areas consistent with Verizon Maryland's Local Exchange Services Tariff.

### 2 RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to resold and facilities-based competitive local exchange services provided by PEG (<sup>7</sup> Bandwidth MD, LLC, hereinafter referred to as the Company, in the State of Maryland. Services are directed at the business market.

- 2.2 Obligations of the Customer
  - 2.2.1 The customer shall be responsible for:
    - 2.2.1.1 The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff;
    - 2.2.1.2 Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the customer; or the noncompliance by the customer, with these regulations, or by fire or theft or other casualty on the customer's premises unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company.
    - 2.2.1.3 Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed space and power to operate the Company's facilities and equipment installed on the customer's premises.

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 Effective date: October 9, 2015

(T)

.

# 3 Reserved for Future Use

(T)

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

# 4 Reserved for Future Use

(T)

(D)

(D)

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(D)

Issued: September 9, 2015

Richard Ruben, CEO PEG Bandwidth MD, LLC 3 Bala Plaza East, Suite 502 Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004